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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Dear Investlor,
On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present MCB Pakistan Asset
Allocation Fund accounts review for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Economy Review

Fiscal year 2024 marked a period of macroeconomic recovery for Pakistan, averting a
looming default brought about by continued economic mismanagement. This tumaround
was primarily attributed to Pakistan entering a new IMF program after several months of
delay. The government secured a much-needed Stand-by Arrangement (SBA) facility of
USD 3.0 billion from the IMF in June 23, and managed to receive timely rollovers from
friendly countries. It also showed unwavering commitment to remain compliant with the
IMF targets and as a result government was able to successfully complete the program.

The caretaker government took office in August 2023 and immediately faced speculative
pressure on the currency, causing il to spike to a record high of 307 in the interbank
market. Exchange rate in informal market reached a higher of near 330 PKR/USD
reflecting an increase of speculative activity and rampant uncertainty. The government
took decisive steps against smuggling of dollar, abuse of Afghan Transit and illegal
money dealers in September 2023, which spurred a rapid recovery in the exchange rate.
This helped in improving confidence and narrower spreads in open and interbank rates.
The authorities also placed mechanisms to strictly monitor exchange rate payments to
manage the overall external balance. Combination of both administration measures and
steps to discipline external and fiscal accounts helped restore overall stability. The USD
PKR close the year at 278.3 appreciating by 2.6% since the start of the year.

Country posted a current account deficit (CAD) of USD 464 million in the first eleven
months of the fiscal year 2024 (11MFY24) declining by 88% YoY compared to a deficit
of USD 3.8 billion in the cormresponding period last year. Narrowing trade deficit was the
major contributor towards improving CAD as 11.3% increase in exports coupled with an
2.3% drop in imports led to a 17.0% contraction in the trade deficit. The county’s
external position improved with SBP’s foreign exchange reserves increasing to USD 9.4
billion as of June 2024 compared to USD 4.4 billion at the end of last fiscal year. This
was on account of flows from the IMF, friendly countries and multilateral sources.

Headline inflation represented by CPl averaged 23.9% during the fiscal year 2024
compared to 29.0% last year. Inflation remained on the higher side as massive currency
depreciation in the prior periods led to surge in food and energy prices. The government
also hiked electricity base tariff and gas prices to comply with the IMF conditions, which
led to further inflationary pressures. The SBP reduced the policy rate by 150bps to 20.5%
in the last monetary policy of the year held on June 10, 2024, The monetary policy noted
a significant decline in inflation, resulting in a substantially positive real interest rate,
which justifies initiating a monetary easing cycle.

The country’s GDP grew by 2.4% in the financial year 2023-24 as compared o -0.2%
last year. Agrniculture grew by 6.3%., Services and industrial sector witnessed a paltry
increase of 1.2% each. Historic high interest rates coupled with political uncertainty were
the major culprits behind the subdued industrial and services output. On the fiscal side,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

FBR tax collection increased by 29.6% in FY24 to PKR 9,285 bilhon, missing the target
by a modest PKR 130 billion.

Equity Market Review

The stock market witnessed exuberance in fiscal year 2024, as the benchmark KSE-100
increased by staggenng §9.2% or 36,992 points, to close at all ime high of 78,445 points.
This also makes Pakistan the best performimng market in the world with USD return of
94 .4% 1n the year.

The bullish momentum continued throughout the year was on account of improvement in
macroeconomic mdicators afler Pakistan entered imto the new IMF program. Market
participants also cheered the successful completion of all IMF reviews under SBA.
Moreover, the successful conclusion of elections in February 2024 brought long due
clarity amongst investors. In addition, reaffirmation by the incumbent government to
continue structural reforms, along with the intention to enter a longer IMF program,
further uplhified sentiment. Lastly, the strength of the local currency post-crackdown on
currency smuggling and hoarding, strong corporate profitability, increase in taxes on
other asset classes m the budget FY25, and start of monetary easing with 150bps cut, all
contributed to the sustainable rally.

During FY24, Foreign investors, Insurance, and Corporates were nel buyers with an
mflow of USD 141 million, USD 126 million and USD 36 million, respectively. While
major selling was witnessed from Banks and Mutual Funds with outflow of USD 141
million and USD 48 million, respectively. During FY24, average trading volumes for
KSE-All Index saw an increase ol 140.4% to 461 million shares compared to about 191
million shares in the same period last year. Similarly, the average trading value during the
period saw a rise of 118.5% over previous year to near USD 55 million.

Banking, Fertilizer, and E&P sector were the major contributors to the index gain
adding 13.262/5,074/4 300points, respectively. Banking sector witnessed broad based
rally as entry mto the IMF program diminished the probability of local debt restructuring
besides strong profitability. Fertilizer sector performed due to better than expected
dividends while E&P rallied due to the news of clearance ol gas circular debt, which
would improve the sector cash lows.

FUND PERFORMANCE

The fund posted a return of 82.79% during the period under review against the
benchmark returm of 76.74%. The fund has gradually increased exposure in equities
which reached to 85.2% by the end ol June 30, 2024 and at the same time 1l decreased the
exposure in cash to 12.4%, by June 30, 2024,

On the equity side, the fund was mamly mmvested in Commercial Banks and Cement

The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2024 stood at Rs. 672 mullion as compared to
Rs. 611 million as at June 30, 2023 registering a increase of 9.98%. The Net Asset Val ue
(NAV) per umt as at June 30, 2024 was Rs. 119.7708 as compared to opening NAV of
Rs. 76.5925 per umt as at June 30, 2023 registering an mncrease of 43,1783 per uniL
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Economy & Market — Future Qutlook

Pakistan GDP is expected to rebound to 3.5% 1n FY25 after a disappointing performance
last year where the GDP increased by only 2.4%. The outlook for industrial output is
relatively optimustic with an expected growth of 4.0% compared to 1.2% last year
Macroeconomic stability, stable currency and decline in mmierest rates wall help revive the
industrial and service sector growth. Agriculture performance 1s hikely to remam on the
lower side due to high base effect.

A new staff-level loan agreement has been reached between Pakistan and the
International Monetary Fund (IMF) under which the country will receive USD 7.0 billion
over 37 months. The fnal approval of the loan will be gmiven by the IMF Executive
Board. Successful continuation of the IMF program 1s a key positive as it wall allow us to
tap funding from bilateral and multilateral sources. However, our external position stll
remains precarious due to debt outflows and our inability to raise [unds through
international Eurobond or Sukuk. Thus, we would continue to run a sustainable current
account this year to stave off external concerms. We expect a CAD of USD 1.0 llion
(0.2% of GDP) in FY25 as policy of consolidation 1s likely to continue under the IMF
umbrella.

The USD PKR 1s expected to remain stable as the government is focusing on improving
current account deficit on the back of recovery 1n export and remittances. Entry into the
new IMF program will also increase visibility on the external funding. We expect
USD/PKR to close the fiscal year around PKR 311.

The mflation reading has started to come down due to base elfect and relatively stable
currency. The headline inflation number in June 2024 clocked of 12.6% compared to a
high of 38.0% in May 2023. The core inflation also registered a significant slowdown,
clocking at 14.1% which 1 a low of 23 months. The inflation reading 15 expected to
decline to single digits in IHFY25. Keeping in view the inflationary trends, external and
fiscal position we expect interest rate to decline to 14-15% by June 25.

From the capital market perspective particularly equities, the market is still trading at
cheap valuations. Market cap to GDP mtio 1s at 9.8%., a discount of 48% [rom its
historical average of 18.9%. Similarly, Eaming Yield minus Risk Free Rate is close to
7.2%, compared to the historical average of 3.0% signifying a deep discount at which the
markel is trading. The resolution of challenges on external account will help to unlock
market potential. We belhieve a micro view of sectors and stocks will remamn important
and investment selection should focus on companies, which trade at a deep discount to
their intrinsic value. The market 1s currently trading at PER of 4.7x, while offering a
dividend yield of 11.2%.

For debt holders. we expect Money Market Funds to continue to seamlessly mirror policy
rates throughout the year. Investors with a mid to long term view can benefit from Bond
and Income Funds where higher duration will create opportunities for capital gains in the
wake of Interest rate outlook. We have added government bonds in Income Funds to
benefit from the expected monetary easing in the near term.

486 MCB PAKISTAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND




REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Mutual Fund Industry Review

The Net Assets of the open-end mutual funds industry inereased by about 64.6% during
FY24 to PKR 2.574 billion. Total money market funds grew by about 45.0% since June
2023. Within the money markel sphere, conventional funds showed a growth of 33.0% to
PKR 629 billion while Islamic funds increased by 58.2% to PKR 679 billion. In addition,
the total fixed Income funds increased by about 104.7% since June 2023 to PKR 756
billion while Equity and related funds increased by 52.3% to PKR 255 billion.

In terms of the segment share, Money Market funds were the leader with a share of
around 50.8%, followed by Income lunds with 37.3% and Equity and Equity related
funds having a share of 9.9% as at the end of June 30, 2024.

Mutual Fund Industry Outlook

Both Bonds and Equities are likely to do well in the next year on the back of cut in
interest rates. During the year, significant interest of investors is already visible in
Income Funds while equity lfund 18 likely to see inflows post new IMF agreement
Relatively High interest rates during the period would encourage sustained flows in the
money market funds as they are ideal for investors with a short-term horizon and low risk
profile.

Our operations remained seamless and given our compelitive edge in digital access and
online customer experience, we are prepared to get benefits of the growing number of
investors available online.

MANAGEMENT COMPANY

On April 18, 2023, MCB Bank Limited (MCB), being the parent company of MCB-Anf
Habib Savings and Investments Limited, has acquired 21,664,167 (30.09%) shares of
MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investment Limited (MCB-AH) from Arif Habib
Corporation Limited (AHCL). By virtue of this transaction MCB Bank Limited’s
sharcholding in MCB-AH has increased from 36,956,768 (51.33%) shares to 58,620,935
(81.42%) and AHCL no longer holds any shares in MCB-AH.

Consequently, members of the Company in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM)
held on July 07, 2023 have resolved via special resolution that the name of the Company
be changed from MCB-Anf Habib Savings and Investments Limited to MCB Investment
Management Limited and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has
approved the change in name on August 15, 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Fund is committed to implement the highest standards of corporate governance. The
Board comprises of eight (8) members including the Chiel Executive Officer (CEO) and
has a diverse mix of gender and knowledge. The Board consists of |1 female and 7 male
directors, categorized as [ollows:
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o 4 Non - Execulive Direclors;
e 3 Independent Directlors; and
¢ | Executive Director (CEO).

The details ol above are as under:

Sr. . Membership in other Board
Name Status L
No. Committees
1. Mr. Haroun Rashid Non-Executive Direclor None
2. Mr. Shoatb Mumitaz Non-Executive Direclor HR&R* Commillee
; : 3 ; HR&R* Commuliee
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Non-Executive Director Audil Commiltee
4. Mr. Manzar Mushtag Non-Executive Director Audit Commutlee
5. ﬁ—‘"‘ﬁd, e Meglal o Diecior  Audi Comaiea (Chiiimaa)
LUss5d1n
6. Mr, Fahd Kamal Chinoy Independent Direclor HR&R* Commiltee (Chairman)
7. Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Independent Direclor HR&R* Commultee
8. :]I.;h Ko Shanl Executive Director HR&R* Commitlee

* HR &R sitands for Human Resource and Remuneration

Management 1s continuing to comply with the provisions ol best practices set out in the
code ol corporate governance. The Fund remainsg commitled to conduct busmness in line
with histing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange, which clearly delined the role and
responsibilities of Board of Directors and Management.

The Board ol Directors is pleased Lo report that:

a. The linancial statements, present [airly the state ol alTairs, the results of operations,
cash Mlows and changes in equity;

b. Proper books ol accounts of the [und have been mamtamed:

¢. Appropnate accounling policies as staled in the notes to the [inancial statements
have been consisiently apphed in preparation of hnancial stalements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment:

d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as apphicable in Pakistan, provisions of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment & Regulations) Rules, 2003,
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notilied Entities Regulations, 2008,
requirements ol the respective Trust Deeds and directives 1ssued by the Securilies
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& Exchange Commission of Pakistan have been followed m the preparation of
nancial siatements.;

. The system of intemal control is sound i design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored with ongoing efforts to improve it further;

f. There are no signmificant doubts upon the fimd’s ability to continue as going
concern;

g. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate
Governance, as detailed in the histing regulations;

h. The outstanding taxes, statutory charges and duties, 1 any, have been fully
disclosed in the audited financial statements;

i. The statement as to the value of investments of provident/gratuity and pension fund
15 not applicable on the Fund bul applies to the Management Company; hence no

disclosure has been made in the Directors’ Report.

J- As at June 30, 2024, the Company 1s in compliance with the requirements of
Directors” Tramming Program, as contamed in Regulation No. 20 of the Code;

k. The detailed pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2024 is annexed;

l. A formal and effective mechanism is put in place for an annual evaluation of the
Board’s own performance, members of the Board and Committees of the Board;

m. The details of attendance of Board of Directors meeting i1s disclosed in financial

statements. Below are the details of committee meetings held during the year ended
June 30, 2024:

1. Meeting of the Audit Committee.

During the year, four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held The
attendance of each participant is as follows:

Number Number of meetings
of
Name of Persons micetings Aﬂl:l::ill::;ﬂ Attended l'_..; :::d
held el g
L Syed $H'ﬁ1]l Meekal 4 4 4 0
Hussain
2 Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 4 4 4 0
3. Mr. Manzar Mushtag -4 4 -+ 0
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2. Meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee.

During the year, two (2) meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee were held. The attendance of each participant is as follows:

Number of meetings
Number | B e
Name of Persons ui: Ath:m:'lan{:e Attended Leave
meetings required granted
) Mr. Fahd Kamal
. Chinoy 2 2 2 -
2. Mr. Shoaib Mumtaz 2 2 2 =
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 2 2 1
4 Ms: Mavra Adil
] Khan 2 2 1 1

n. No trades in the Units of the Fund were carried out during the year by Directors,
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer. Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary, and Chief Internal Auditor of the Management Company and
their spouses and minor children.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Fund’s external auditor’s M/s. A_F Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants have
retired after completion of audit for Financial Year ended June 30, 2024. The Audit
Committee has recommended re-appointment of M/s. ALF Ferguson & Co. Chartered
Accountants as external auditors of the Fund for financial year ending June 30, 2025 and
the Board has also endorsed the recommendation of the Audit Committee. M/s. ALF
Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants has also expressed their willingness to act as
the Fund’s external auditors.
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Fund Type and Category

MCB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund MCB-PAAF is an Open-End Asset Allocation Scheme for which SECP
categorization In process.

Fund Benchmark

Weighted average of 70% of three (3) months PKRV rates + 30% of three (3) months average deposit rates of
three (3) "AA” rated commercial banks as selected by MUFAP and six (6) month KIBOR and KSE-100
index based on the actual proportion of the scheme in Money market, Fixed income and equity securitics

Invesiment Objective

MCB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund is an asset allocation fund and its objective is to aim to provide a high
absolute return by investing in equity and debt markets.

Investment Strategy

The fund will aim to achieve the above-mentioned objective by investing up to 100% in equity securities or
up o 100% in debt securities according to the market conditions.

Manager's Review

The fund posted a return of 82.79% during the period under review against the benchmark return of 76.74%.
Equity exposure of the fund at June end was 85.2% whereas cash exposure was 12.4%.

On the eguity side, the fund was mainly invested in Commercial Banks and Cements.
The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2024 stood at Rs. 672 million as compared to Rs. 611 million as at
June 30, 2023 registering an increase of 9.98%. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 2024 was

Rs. 119.7708 as compared to opening NAV of Rs. 76.5925 per umit as at June 30, 2023 registering an
increase of 43.1 783 per unit.

Asset Allocation as on June 30, 2024 (% of total assets)

Asset Allocation (Yeage of Total Assets) Jun-24
Cash 12.4%
Stocks / Eguities R32%
Others including receivables 24%
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Assel Quality as on June 30, 2024 (% of total asseis)

BAR
127 2% Al
0.2%
Mot Rated
87 6%

Sector Allocation (Yeage of Total Assets)

Dther Assets ;
3.5 Commercial
' Banks

Cash _ 22 6%
12.4% i

Cement
15 7%

Other Sector
25.8%

Pharmaceuticals

, 8.60%
Fertilizer et
5.6% e
Compnosite
G6.9%

Syed Abid Ali
Fund Manager
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LINITED

M@ OfFice:

DM Howse, 209-8, Block '8

M T H% Mam Sabra-nFfesasl
Karachl - TAAO0 Pakisten

Tl (B2 1) 11 0-011.550

P (8E-11) 34300021 - 23
LIRL danise £l pn T 1ai foom
Limad il e T

2@

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDE RS
MOB PAKISTAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant (o Regulation 41(k) and clause § of Schedule V of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and MNotified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Cenlral Depesitory Company of Pakisten Limited, being the Trustee of MCB
Pakistan Assel Allocation Fund (the Fund) are af the opinion that MCB Investment
Management Limited being the Management Compamy of the Fund has in all material
respects manaped the Pund duriig the your ended June 30, 2024 in secopdance with the
provesons of the ollowmg:

(i)  Limitations imposesd on the investment powers of the Minagetnent Compony
under the constitutive documents of the Funid;

{n) The pricing, isssance and redempiom of unils are camied out in accordance with
the requirements of the constitutive documents of the Pand

(81}  The mansgement fee, foo puyable 1o Commission and biher expenscs paid from
the Fund durng the period yre in pecordanoe with the applicable regulitory
frnmework; amd

() The Nop-Bankmg Fiince Companies (Establishment sl Regulabions) Rules,
2003, the Non-Brnking Finpnce Compunies and Notificd Entities Regulation,
2008 ard the constitutive dociments of the Fonad

For the afention of unit holders, during @n omsilc mspection of the Mannpement
Company, the Securities and Exchange Conumission of Pakistan (SECP) idemified
certamn multery reliled to the charging and allocation of selling and marketing expenses
to the Fund. Accordingly, the Mimagement Company, fallowing the guidance amsd
|mcr§mumrl provided by the SECP, will compensaie 1o the entitled unit holders

L]
i kbl
Badiuddin :'ﬁ
Chief Exceutive O4Tioer

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karnchi: September 30, 2004
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

=

pwc AFFERGUSON&CO.

INDEFENDENT AUMTOR'S REPORT
To the Unit holders of MOUB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund
Report aon the Audil of the Finanelal Statements
Dpinion
We have andited the financial statements of MCH Paklatan Asset Allocation Tend (the Pund), which
compoze the statement of sssets and linbilities 22 8t June 90, 2024, and the income statement, statement
of comprebensve ihoeme, strlement of movement in unit holden” fund and eash Bow statement for the
veur then ended, and notes to the financial statements, meluding materisl sccounting policy informatim.

In our apimion, the acrompanyin fEnanri:ﬂ mtem-enl.l give a troe and fair view of the financial position of

the Fond us sl Jone 3o, El:ﬂq., of 148 finnneinl performance and ity cosh flovs for the year then ended in
sccordance with the nocounfing snd reporting stundards aa applicable in Palistan.
Basis for Opinion

We conrducted onr audit In sceordanee swith Intermational Sandards on Anditing (154a) aa applicable in
Palastan, Our responshilities under those stendnrds are further deseribed in the Anditor's Responsihilities
Jor the Audit of the Finanelo! Statements setion of our report. We are Indepenient of the Tund in
scconiancs with the Internaticnal Ethics Standards Board for Accountsnts” Code gf Erhnes for Professional
Acoountards o8 adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Fakistan (ihe Code) and we have
fliifled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code, We believe thatl the audit svidence
we have obiained s sufficient nnd appropriate to provide a basin for our opinion.,

Key Audii Matiers

Ery audit mattems are those maners that, in oor professional judgment, wore of most signifirsnce in our
uwnnlit of the financial stalemeris of the eurrent period. Thess matiers were addressed in the context of oo
sudit of the financial statements a4 2 whole, snd in forming cur opinion thereon, and we do not provide s
sopRTRtD cyEnicn on thess mattom

Following in the lory mudit matter:

i Met Asset Valus (NAV)
{Refer nintes 4 and 5 to the fimancial
Mlatementa)

Haleticen with bankn and [nveatrmenta conatitute Oui sudit procedares atnengl athers inelisded the nllawing
the st sinl flcmt components of the net asset o Pduained [ndependent confirmationa for verifying the
yalue. Balascon with banks of the Fund & 810 cxigpenes of the investment portiolls snd halanees with
June 30, 2024 ugzrogaied to Ra. BR800 milllan | Lanky ee ot June 30, 2024 and traced them to the boaks
wnd Investmests omounted 10 Ra 60865 ond ey of the Pamd, Where such confl rmadborm ware

rivillin, nart avaiable, alternate andn procedurss were performed;

The existence of holascen with banks aed the o poperirmd valuation to sssrs thet Investmes wre
teteee anc waluation of Investmenis ‘mathmin specitied T

F:r tha ﬂlﬂ::ﬂi natlon of MAV of the Fund as :ﬂﬂ::h:m;'mmm o 2t

Jume 30, 2004 way comxidered o high risk ares. i
e Userelre we considered this as & key aodig|®  Sotained busk reconcliation statements and tested

prie sy reconciling ema on & sample basii.

A, F. FERGUSON & OO, [hertered Aecesiniviintn, @ mwmber firm of the Ped network
Site Life Building No, 5O, IE. Chundriger Rood, P.O. Box £778, KEaroche-7g00, Pokistos
Tiel: adall Fon) bt Alz- /a8 a0tmn-1 Fax: +oe (21) 5200 5007 S0 Pasi a0 a0, <L paise oo ko

s KARACH s LAHDRE » ISLAMABAD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

pwe AFFERGUSON&CO,

Other Matter

The financial staterments of the Fund for the yesr ended June 30, 2023 were sodited by another firm of
Chartered Accointants whi had exproessed an unmodified opinica thereon vide there report dated
Saptemnber 20, 2023,

Other Information

Manageiment ls renponaible for the other infotmation. The ather {nformation comprives the Information
Eﬂudm! in the Annual Repart, but does nol include the finsneia] statoments and our suditor's report
Lwgeiin®

O epinkon on the Anancial sistements does nof cover the other Information and we do not expoess soy
form of assurance conclusion theroon.

In connection with our sudit of the financial statements, our responshility is to read the other informution
and, in doing so, conaider whether the other information s materially moonsdstent with the Bnanclal
statementa of our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appeans to be materially minstated, I, hased
am the work we have performod, we conelude that there is o material misstatement of this ather i formation,
we fime required to report that fset. We have nothing 1o report in this regand.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors of the Menagement Company for
the Financial Statements

Mn ment is responsible for the preparation and fair presentstion of the Gnancial stabements in
B e with acoounting and reporting standards os applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal contral
a5 management detcrmines i necessary toenatile the prepanition of financial sntements that are fres from
material misstatement, whether due to fravd or errar.

In preparing the financial statemants, managenent @ responaible for assessing the Famd's ahility to
cuntnue as o going; concern, disclosing, us applicable, matten related to golng concern and uelng the going
concern bosis of sccounting unbess menagenent sither intends to lguidate the Fusd or to pepse operalions,
or has o realistic ali=mative but to do 5o,

Bonrd of divecion of the Manngemant Company ks tesponalliln for overseelng the Fund's financial reparting
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financinl Statements

Crr objectives are 1o abtain ressonable sssurance pbout whether the financial statements s o whole ace
free from materinl misstatement, whether doe to fravd or error, and (6 bsoe an anditor's report that
inclades cur opindon. Reasonable assurance is o high level of assurance, but is not a goarantee that an andit
conducied in accordanoe with iSAs as applicable in Paldetan will alweyn detoct & matorial migstatoment
when |t exists, Misststements can arise from frand or ermor and are considered material if, individually or
in the apgregate, they conld reasonably be expected 1o influence the soonomic decistons of users taken an
the hasis of these financial stotements.

Adi of wn audit s accondnnee with 18As o8 applicable in Paldatin, we exerciss profoesional judgment
and maintain professional skepticisn throughout the andit. Wi also!

* dentify and naness the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frond
or error, design and perform audit procedures tesponaive to those risks, and obtain audit evidenoe that
b8 suffielent and approprlate to provide a hasls for our opinion, The sk of not deteeting 2 material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may tnviolve
eallusin, forgery, Intentlonal ombssions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal eontrol

Ayer,
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«  Obtain an onderstunding of internal control celevant to the sudit in order 1o design audit procsdures
thut ase appeopeiate n the ciroumetances, but not for the purpose of cxpresuing an opinlos on the
effsctivencss of the Fund's internal control,

*  Eviluate the approprisioness of accounting policles used and the reasoonblenssa of accounting
estimatoi and related disclisires made by maRigemenl

+  Conclude on the sppropriateness of manigement’s use of the golng concorn baxia of sccounting and,
hased on the sudlt evidencs obtained, whether o material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions thal may cast significant doobl on the Fund's ability to continue ai a going concern, If we
cottlods that o material nncertwingy exista, we are required to drw attention in cor soditor's repart to
the related disolosures in the finaneial satemants or, if eoeh disclosures aie inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Owr eonclusions are bused on the sudii evidence obiained up Lo the date of our sudibor's report,
However, fature eventa or conditions may cause the Fund to cexse to contings a5 a going concern.

*  BEvpluste the overall presemtation, strocture and content of the financial satements, neleding the
disclosures, and whether the finanelal statements represent the underlying transactions and svents in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with board of directors of the Management Company regarding, among other matters,
the planned. scope and timing of the aodit and significont audit findings, including any significsnt
deficdencies in intermal control that we identify during our sudit,

We also provide board of directors of the Management Company with a statement that we have complied
with relevamt ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relaticnahips and other matiem that may ressosahly be thaught to bear on our independencn, snd where
applicahle, roleted safepuards,

From the matters communicatod with board of directors of the Managrment l‘.hmﬂ:ny, wr detormine thosy
miatters that were of most significance in the nudit of the [nsnclal statements of the corrent perlod and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our suditor's repor unless bnw or regulation
preciudes publie disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely e circomestsnces, we detoomine that
u mstter shonld not be communicsted [n var report beesuse the sdverse consequinces of doing so would
regsonahly be expected to outwrigh the public interest benefits of such communiration.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on ouraudit, we further report that in our opinion the financial stafements have been prepared inall

minterin] respects in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Non-Ranking Fitance Companies and
Motifled Entities Regulations, aoaf,

The engagement partner on the sodit resniting in this independent puditor’s report {5 Junaid Mesia.

wien BL

A F.F n & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Dited- October 4, 2024

UiiN: ARZO241061 1 TR0 LN omd4
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS

Balances with banks

Investments

Advances, deposits and other receivables
Receivable against sale of investmenis
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Payable to MCB Investment Managemenl

Limited - Management Company
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to the Securties and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Payable against redemption of units
Fayable against purchase of investments

Accrued expenses and other liahiliies
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

Unit holders® fund (as per statement attached)

Contingencies and commitments

NUMEER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

For MCB Investment Management Limited

(Management Company)

T
A '

P,
P i A

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
—-— (Rupees in "000") ——
88,809 97 614
611,865 555,303
9,677 8,510
8,221 4 465
Fi8,572 665,892
2522 1,922
124 113
52 144
51 M
7,016 16,743
36,809 36,289
45,644 55242
671,928 610,650
671,928 610,650
— (Number of units) —
5!51 D!i 14 79712712
—— (Rupees) ———
118.7708 T6.5925

T ay

Director
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INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

INCOME

Net realised gain / (loss) on sale of investments

Dividend income

Income from government securifies

Profit on savings accounts with banks

Net unroalised appreciation f (diminution) on re-measurement of investments
claszified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss'

Other incoma

Total income

EXPEMSES

Remuneration of MCB Investmont Management Limited - Management Company
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company

Allocated exponses

Seliing and marketing expenses

Remuneration of Cenfral Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trusieo
Sindh Sales Tax on remuncration of the Trustes

Fea to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Auditors” remuneration

Brokerage and seitlemont charges
Fees and subscription

Laegal and professional charges
Prinfing and related costs

Bank charges

Total operating expenses

HNet incomae [ (loss) for tho year before taxation
Taxation

Mot income [ (loss) for the year after taxation
Earnings / (loss) par unit

Allocation of net income for the year

MNet income for the year after taxation

Income already paid on units redeomed
Accounting income available for distribution

- Relafing to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial siatements.

Note

[
iz
1.3
74
B
8.2
8.1

For MCB Investment Management Limited

(Management Company)

T
A '

P,
P i A

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

For the year ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
e (Rupees in “0:00) ——
179,170 {34.661)
50,124 29,465
2575 5,483
18,315 19,765
158,181 (18,896)
213 137
408,578 31,293
20,070 23,716
2,609 3,083
853 717
1.710 -
1.287 1,433
167 186
610 144
1,002 1.025
2,950 3,339
283 28
191 174
33 40
55 131
(31,520) {34.,016)
377.058 (2,723)
377.058 {2,723)
377,058 -
(73,148) -
303210 =
272 656 -
31,254 -
303210 =

T ay

Director
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

For the year ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
{Rupees in ‘000") ——
Net income | (loss) for the year after taxation arr.0s8 (2.723)
Oiher comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income | {loss) for the year 377 058 {2.723)

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

o
- .--..___..-' . o ] A
P M Muﬁén%mﬁin‘v—

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

MNet assets at the beginning of the year

lesuznce of 1,220 476 wnilts (2023: 500,428 unils)
- Capital value (al net assels value par unit 2t the
beginning of the year)
- Elemant of incoma | (loss)
Total proceseds on issuance of units

Rademplion of 3 583 074 units (2023: 3,538 942 unils)
- Capital value (at net assets value per unit al the

beginning of the year)
- Elemant of {loss) / incomea
Total payments on redemption of units

Total comprabansve mcome [ (ioss) for the yesr

Destribution for the year ended June 30, 2024

i@ Rs. 20 per unil {declared on June 26, 2024)
Ralund of capital duting the year
Net income for the year less distribution

Net assets at the and of the year

Accumiulated losses brought forwand
- Riealized loss
- Unresalised hoss

Accounting income available for distribution
- Relaling lo capital gains

~ Extluding capital gaing
Destribuition mmade during e year

Mol loss for the year afler axation
Accumiulated loss carried forward

Accumulated loss carried forward

- Healised loss
- Unrealised gain | (loss)

Net asset value per unit at the beginning of the year

Net asset value per unit at the end of the year

Year ended June 30, 2024 Year ended June 30, 2023
Accumulaied Accumulated
Capital value s Total Capital vahis e Total
[Rupees in T
1,799,783 (1,180,133} 610,650  2,024.393 (118654100 ©37.083
83 480 - 93,480 38,083 . 38,083
40 607 - 48,600 [155) - {355)
143,083 - 143,083 ar. 728 - 37,728
(274.437) = (Z74.437) (269,323) = {269,323)
{13,313) (73.148)|  (B6461) 6,985 - 6,985 |
[287,750) (73,188} (360,808)  (Z62,330) - [262,538)
= A77.058 | 377,058 = (2.723) {2, 723)
= {45,870} | (95.870) = . =
(2,095} ) (2,095) = = £
(2,095) 281188 279,003 = (2,723) {2.723)
1,653,021 (981,093} 671828 1799783  (1.189.133) B10.650
{1,170,235) {1.111,834)
18 B8R {14, 576)
(1,188,133} {1.186.410)
272656 -
31,254 =
303,810 "
{85,870) =
—— S )
(381,083) 1.188,133
{1.129,274) [1.170,235)
158,181 18,858
{91,081 (1,185,133}
(Rupees) (Rupeas)
765825 761026

1187708

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

e T

&

"y

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

T6.5425

T ay

Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Nel income ! (loss) for the year before {axation

Adjustments for:

Dividend income

Met unrealised (appreciation) [ diminution on remeasurement of investments
classified as ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss® - net

Decrease in assets
Investments - net

Advances, deposits and other receivables
Receivable against sale of investments

Decrease in liabilities

Payable to MCB Investment Management Limited - Management Company
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakisian

Payable against purchase of investments

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Dividend received

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts against issuance and conversion of units - net of refund of capital
Payment against redemption and conversion of unils

Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) | increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4

The annexed notes from 1 o 27 form an integral part of these financial stalemenis.

For MCB Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

T
A '

P,
P i A

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

For the year ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
smeeee ([RUpEES in "DO0") e
377,058 {2,723)
(50,124) (59.465)
(158,181) 18,896
168,753 {43,292)
44 038 262 606
30 262
{3,7586) {4,465}
40,583 258 403
&a00 {816)
11 (46)
(92) (72)
(9,727) {34,308)
610 147
{8,508) {35,005)
48 656 58,441
249,394 238 457
140,988 I7T 728
(360,858) {262.338)
{95,870) -
(315,780) (224 610)
(66,388) 13,847
155,185 141,348
&8.809 155,195

T ay

Director
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

MCB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund (the Fund) was established through a Trust Deed exscuted between MCB-Arf
Habib Savings and Investmenis Limited (now: MCB Investment Management Limited), as the Management Company
and Ceniral Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as Trustee. The drafl Trust Deed of the Fund was
approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its letter dated January 17, 2008
consequent lo which Trusi Deed was executed on November 22, 2007 in accordance with the Asset Management
Companies Rules, 1995 (AMC Rules) repealed by the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Regulations) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules). Dunng the year ended June 30, 2021, the Trust Act, 1882 was repealed
due to promulgation of Provisional Trust Act namety "Sindh Trusts Act, 20217 (the Sindh Trust Act) as empowered
under the Eighteenth Amendment to the Constitution of Pakistan_ The Fund was regisiered under the Sindh Trust AcL
Accordingly, on August 12, 2021.

In April 2023, MCB Bank Limited acquired the entire shareholding of Arf Habib Corporation Limited (AHCL) in MCB
Aril Habib Savings and Investments Limited after which the shareholding of MCB Bank Limited has increased from
51.33% o 81.42% in the Management Company and AHCL no longer holds any shares in the Management
Company. Consequently, members of the Management Company in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EQGM)
held on July 7, 2023 resolved via spedal resolution that the name of the Management Company be changed from
MCB Anf Habib Savings and Investments Limited to MCB Investmenl Management Limited.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed o act as an Asset Management Company under the Non
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules 2003 through a cedificate of registration issued
by the SECP. The registered office of the Management Company is siluated at 2nd Floor, Adamjee House, LL
Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan.

The fund is an open-ended mutual fund and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity
of the Fund is to make invesiment in secunties or instruments both inside and oultside Pakistan. Units are offered for
public subscripion on a continuous basis. The units are transferable and can be redeemed by summendering them to
the Fund. The Fund has been categorsed as “Assel Allocation® scheme by the Board of Directors of the Asset
Management Company in accordance with the requirements of Circular 7 of 2009 dated March 06, 2009 issued by
the SECP.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned an asset manager rating of "AM1" on Oclober 06,
2023 (2023: "'AM1' dated October 6, 2022) to the Management Company. The rating reflects the Management
Company’s' expenenced management team, struclured investmeni process and sound guality of systems and
processes.

Title to the assels of the Fund i held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as Trustee of
the Fund.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Accounting Standards) issued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as nolified under the Companies Act, 2017,

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act 2017, along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Motified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and the
reguirements of the Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Acl, 2017, part VIILlA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the
IFRS Accounting Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the
repegled Companies Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of the Trust
Deed have been followed.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

26

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are not
affective in the current year:

There are certain amandments o the published accounting and reporling standards that are mandatory for tha
Fund's annual accounting period beginning on July 1, 2023, However, thess am nol considerad [0 be relevant or did
not have any materal effect on the Fund's financial statements and bave, hoerefors, nol been disclosed in these
financial stalements aexcapl thal during the year cerlain amendmeanis lo 1AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Stalaments’
have bacome applicable 1o the Furnd which require entiies o disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than thair significanl accounting policies. These amendments io IAS 1 have been introduced o help enliies
improve accounting policy disclosures so thal they provide more useful information to investors and othar primary
usens of the inancial stalements. These amendments have bean incorporated in these financial statements with the
primary impact thal the maleral ascoounting policy nformation has been disclosed rathes than the significant
accounting policies.

Standards, interpretations and amendmenits to published accounting and reporting standards that are not
yet effective

There are certain new standards and amendmeanis o the published accounting and reporting standards that will ba
applicabis lo the Fund lor it annual perods beginning on or after July 1, 2024, However, thesse are nol considered (o
be relevant or did nol have any matedal effect on the Fund's financial stalements except for

- The new standard - IFRS 18 Preseniation and Discosure in Financial Statements (IFRS 18) (published in Agril
2024 with applicability date of January 1, 2027 by IASBE. IFRS 18 when adopted and applicable shall impact the
presaniation of Income Slatement’ with cerlain additional disclosures in the financial stalements; and

- Amendmanis o IFRS 8 "Financial Instruments’ which darify the dale ol recognifion and demecognilion ol a
financizl asset or inancial Bability including setlement of liabilies throuwgh banking instruments and channals
incduding electronic Fansfers. The amendmenl when applied may impacl the bHming ol mecogniion and
darecognition of fnandal labilities.

Critical accounting estimates and judgemeants

The preparalion ol the lnancial staleaments in conformily with the accounting and reporting standards requires Tha

management o0 make estmates, judgments and assumplions thatl affect the repored amounts of assels and

liabiliies and ncoine and expanses. Il also requires the managemeanl o axefcise judgmeant in the application ol the

Company's accounling policias. The eslimates and associaled assumplions are based on historical experence and

various olher faclors, including expeclation of fulure events, thal are believed v be meascnable under lhe

circumstances, ha resulls of which form the basis of making judgments about camying value of assols and lEabifitios

These estimates and assumplions are reviewed on an obgoing basks. Rovisions 1o accounting eslimates ara

recognisad in the year in which he eslimale is revised if the revision alfecls only thal year, or in he yeasr of revision

and fulure years il he revision affects both the curment and fulure years.

The estimales and judgements thal have a significant effect on the financial stalements of the Fund relate 1o
dassification and valuation ol financial assals (noles 3.2 and 5).

Accounting convention

These inancial statermaents have been prepared under the historcal cost conmvention except lor investments classilied
as ‘al fair value through profil or loss' which are measured al their respeclive lair values.

Functional and presentation currency

Ilems included in these financial statemants are measured using the currency ol the primary economic environmeant
in which the Fund operates. These linancial stalemants are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Fund's
functional and presantation cumancy.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The maleral accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial stalemenls are set oul below. Thesae
policies have bean consistenlly applied 1o all the years presented.

Cash and cash equivalents

Thesae comprise balances with banks in savings and current accounls, chegues in hand and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assels are recognised al the Gme the Fund becomes a parly o the contreclual provisions ol tha
instrurments. These are inilially recognised ol fair value plus transaction costs excapl for inancial assels carried “al
fair value through profil or loss”. Financial assets camed st fair value through profil or loss' are initially recognised at
Tair valua and transaclion cosls amre recognised in he Incoma Stalemenl
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

3.23

Clazssification and subsequent measuremant
Debt instrumanis
IFRS 9 has provided a criteria for debt securifies whermby these debt securnfies are either classified as:

- at amodised cost;
- at fair value through other comprehensive income (FWYOCT); and
= at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

baszed on the business model of the entity.

However, IFRS 9 also provides an option whernoby securities managed &5 a portfolio or group of assets and whoso
parfomance is measured on a fair value basis, to be recognized at FWPL. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value
information and uses that information to assess the asseis’ perdormance and to make decisions. Therefore the
management considers its investment in debt securities a5 being managed as a group of assets and hence has
classified them as FVPL

Equity instrumeni=

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definiion of equity from fthe issuers perspective and are
instuments that do not contain a contfractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer's net

All equity investments are required to be measurad in the “Statement of Assets and Liabilifies™ at fair value, with
gains and losses recognised in the “Income Statement”, except where an imevocable election has been made at the
time of inifal recognifion to measure the investment at FVOCH. The management considers s investment in equity
securifics being managed as a group of assets and hence has dassified them as FVPL. Accordingly, the imevocable
option has not been considered.

The dividend income for equity securities classified under FVPL is recognised in the Income Statement.

Since all investments in eguity instruments have been designated as FVPL, the subsequent movemant in the fair
value of eguity securiies is routed through the Income Statement.

Impairment {other than debl securities)

The fund assesses on a forward looking basis the expecied credit loss (ECL) associated with its financial assets
camicd al amorised cost. The fund recognises loss allowances for such losses @l each reporting date. The
measurement of ECL reflocts:

= Anunbiased and probability weighted amount that is determined by evalualting a range of possible outcomes;
= The time value of money; and

= Reasonable and supportable information that is available withoul undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, cument condifions and forecasts of future economic condifions.

The Fund considers that a financial asset is in default when the counterparty fails o make contractual payments
within 90 days of when they fall due. Further, financial assels are writicn off by the Fund, in whole or part, when it has
oxhavstod all practical recovery efforts and has conduded that there s no reasonable expectation of recoveny.

Impairment loss on debt securitios

Provision for non-pedorming debt securties is made on the basis of ime-based criteria as prescribed by the SECP
and based on management’s assessment made in fine with its provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors
of the Managemant Company in accordance with the guidelines issued by the SECP. Impairment losses recognised
on debt securties can be reversed through the Income Statement.

As allowed by the SECP, the Management Company may make provision against debt securities over and above the
minimum provision requiremant prescribed by the SECE considering the specific crodit and financial condition of the
debt security issuer and in accordance with the provisioning policy duly approved by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. The provisioning policy approved by the Board of Direclors has been placed on the
Management Company's websile as required under the SECP's circular.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

325

Regular way contracts

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade dale Le. the dale on which the
Fund commits fo purchase or sell the assel Regular way purchases | sales of assels require delivery of secunties
within two days from the transaction date as per the stock exchange regulations.

Dearacognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the righis o receive cash flows from the financial assels have expired or
have been transferred and the Fund has transfermed substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Any gain or loss
on derecognition of financial asseis is faken to the Income Statement.

Financial liabilifies

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party fo the confraciual provisions of the
instruments. These are inifially recognised at fair values and subsequently staled at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability i= discharged, cancelled or expired. Any
gain of loss on derecognifion of financial liabilities is taken to the Income Siatement

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assels and financial kabilities are offiset and the net amount is reporied in the Siatement of Assets and
Liabilities" when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention fo
settle on a net basis; or to realise the assets and satfle the liabiliies simulfaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past events, it
iz probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation and a
refiable estimate of the obligafion can be made. Provisions are regulary reviewed and adjusted to reflect the cument
best estimate.

MNet asset value per unit

The Met Asset Value (NAV) par unit as disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilibes is calculated by dividing
the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in circulation at the year end.

Issuance and redemplion of units

Units izssued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received
by the Management Company [ distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the Nef
Asset Value (MAV) per unit as of the close of the business day, plus the allowable sales load and provision of any
dufies and charges if applicable. The sales load is payable to the Management Company / distributors.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption pnce applicable to uniis for which the Management Company [/
disinbutors receve redemplion applications dunng business howrs of that day. The redemption price is egual to MAV
as of the close of the business day, ke=s an amount as the Management Company may consider o be an

appropriate provision of duties and charges.

Distributions to unit holdars

Distnibutions fo the wnil holders are recognised upon declaration and approval by the Board of Direclors of the
Management Company. Based on the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly consented
by the SECP, disfribution for the year also includes portion of income already paid on units redeemead during the

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporfing date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognised in the financial statements of the year in which such distribufions are declared and approved by the
Board of Directors of the Management Company.

Element of income | (loss) and capiial gains | (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units
redeamad

Element of income represents the difference between MNet Asset Value per unit on the issuance or redempbion date,
as the case may be, of unids and the net azsets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting perod.
Further, the element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is
taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset value of all uniis cutstanding on the
accounting date, net element of income contnbuted on issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on units in
the same proporfion as dividend bears fo accounting income availlable for distribution.
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314

Revenue recognition

- Gains / (losses) ansing on sale of investments are included in the Income Statement, on the dato when the
transaction takes place;

- Income on term finance cerificates, sukuks and govemmenl securiies is recognized on a lime proporionate
basziz using the effective yield method, excepl for the securiies which are classified as Non-Performing Assol
under Circular No. 33 of 2012 ssued by the SECP for which the profits are recorded on cash basis,

- Unrealised appreciation / (diminution) ansing on re-measurement of investments classified as financial assels "al
fair valuo throuwgh profit or loss' are included in the Income Statement in the pericd in which they arise;

- Dividend income iz recognised when the Fund's rght to receive the same i established e, on the
commencemant of date of book dosure of the investes company [ instiiution declaring the dividend, and

- Profit on saving accounts with bank i recognised on an accrual basis.

Expenses

Al cxpenses chargeable to the Fund incuding remuneration of the Management Company and Trustee and fee of
SECP ame recognised in the Income Statemant on an accrual basis.

Taxation
Current

Provision for cument taxation is based on taxable income at the cumrent rales of taxes afler taking info account Bx
credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax is calculated using the prevailing lax rates

Deferrad

Deferred tax iz accounted for using the balance sheet liabidlity method in respect of all temporary difforences arising
from differences betwesn the camying amount of asselts and labilities in the fimancial statements and the
cofresponding tax bases wsed in the computation of the taxable profil.

The deferred tax kabilities are generally recognised for all taxable lemporary differences and deferred tax assels are
recognisced 1o the oxient that it i probable thal taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differencos, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred lax s calcutated at the ates that
are expected o apply o the pariod whan the differences reverse based on enacted lax rates.

The income of the Fund s cdompt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule 1o the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001, subject (o the condition thal not less than 90 percent of its accounting income for the year, as
reduced by capilal gains, whether realised or unrealisod, is distributed amongst the unit holders. Furthermaore, for the
purpose of determining distnbution of al least 30 percent of the accounting income, the Income distributed through
bonus units shall not be taken inlo account

The Fund i= also exempl from the provisions of section 113 {minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part 1V of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Earnings / (loss) per unit

Eamings / (loss) per unit i calculated by dividing the net profit / loss of the year after taxation of the Fund by the
welghled average number of units outstanding during the year.

Eamings [ {lozs) per unit has not boen disclosed as, in the opinion of the management, the determimation of
cumulative weighited average number of outstanding units for calculating EPU is nol practicablo.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in forelgn currencies are accounied for in Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the fransacions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulfing from the sctiement of such
transactions and from the translation al year end exchango rates for monelary assets and labilities denominated in
forelan currencies are recognised in the Income Stalementl
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Mote June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
4 BALANCES WITH BANKS —— {Rupees in '000) —
- In savings accounis 4.1 83,663 92 356
- In current accounts 4.2 5146 5,258
48,809 97,614

4.1 These carry profit at the rates ranging from 19.00% to 20.50% per annum (2023: 12.25% to 21.50% per annum) and
include Rs. 0.012 million (2023: Rs. 0.009 million) maintzined with MCEB Bank Limited (a related party) which carries
profil at the rate of 20_.50% (2023: 19.50%) per annom.

4.2  These include balance of Rs. 5.14 million (2023: Rs. 5.25 million) maintained with MCB Bank Limiled (a related

party).
Mote June 30, June 30,
5 INVESTMENTS 2024 2023
—-— (Rupees in "000) ———
51 Investments at ‘fair value through profit or loss’
Listed equily securibies - ordinary shares 511 580 245 A73. 722
Listed equity secunlies - preference shares 512 22 620 24 000
Market Treasury Bills 513 - 57,581
611,865 555303

mm

5.1.1 Listed equity securities - ordinary shares
Shares of listed compamies - fully paid ordinary shares of Rs.10 each unless slated othenwise

il valoezza | Fadop vam of
Wamber of shares Balanco s al Jene 36, 204 v | s
Tonma perzestage of ot
Mam o he invesins company At by w rightisun | Sold derng| Asit Juoe | Carrying | Merkat wf “:H :: aid-up capta of
oz | I inome | thepew | MmN | ke | vk "'"_'”"b ot | g | oimshe
= jax mpEy |
—— (Fezpaas in DY %
AUTOMOBILE ASSEMBLER
Inies Kbty Cormpeany Limitad 7300 - 7,500
Pk Suzki Moty Company Limiind - X0 . 26000
AUTOMOBLE PARTS & ACCESSORIES
Thal Limited* . MS5E - Wm0 Mpn| E&S| NN T ] R 00
Agriain Indusiries Limilod" 63125 2500 - . Lek5| BORZ| 995 3 141 15 1%
Panther Tyres Limiled - 4000 . - o] 150|154 ] 0m| o (1Y)
143 2ET g im  an (5]
CABLE AND ELECTRICAL GOODS
Pai Fiekion Limiled . DEIM00 : - mu.nm| &?ﬁa| E.ES] [:-mp| I:Lsﬁ| uﬁi am
T G5 M) 0% 105 [TH]
* Thesa havia face valua of Rs. 5 per shane
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™ These represanl plndge securibes =
=T herse regmresent rarsacion n shares of rded pares.

5.1.1.1 The below investments include shares having a market value (in aggregate) amounting to Rs. 51.04 million (June 30,
2023: Rs. 5027 million) which have been pledged with Mational Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited for
guaranteeing settiement of the Fund's frades in accordance with circular no. 11 dated October 23, 2007 issued by
the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The details of shares which have boen piedged are as follows:
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a June 30, Juna 30, June 30, June 30,
Nume of secuily 2024 2023 2024 2023

—— (Number of shares) — {Rupeos in "000) —
The Hub Power Company Limited 12,000 500,000 1.957 34,790
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited 300,000 200,000 11,400 5,666
Fauji Cement Company Limited 500,000 500,000 11,455 5,880
Systems Limited 4.500 . 1,882 .
United Bank Limited 95,000 110,000 24 343 12,920

011,500 1,310,000 _ 51,037 59 765

5.1.1.2 The Finance Act, 2014 introduced amendments to the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 as a result of which companies
are liable to withhold five percent of the bonus shares to be issued. The shares so withheld shall only be released if
the Fund deposits tax equivalent to five percent of the value of the bonus shares issued to the Fund including bonus
shares withheid, determined on the basis of day-end price on the first day of closure of books of tho issuing
company.

in this regard, a constitutional petiion had been filed by Collective Investment Schemes (ClSs) through their
Trustees in the High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability of withholding fax provisions on bonus shares
raceived by CiSs. The pefiion was based on tha fact that bocausa ClSs are axempt from deduction of income tax
under Clavse 99 Pari | io the Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, the withholding tax provision
should also not be applicable on bonis shares received by ClSs. A stay order had been granted by the Honourable
High Court of Sindh in favour of CiSs.

Dwring the year ended June 30, 2018, the Supreme Couri of Pakistan passed a judgement on June 27, 2018
whareby the suits which are already pending or shail be filed in future must only be confinued / entertained on tha
condiion that a minimum of 50 percent of the tax calculated by the tax authorifics i deposited with the authorties.
Accordingly, the ClSs were required o pay mindmum 50% of the tax calculated by the tax authorifies for the case o
remain continued. The ClSs falled o deposit the minimum 50% of the tax liability and accordingly the stay got
vacated automatically. During the yvear ended June 30, 2020, the CiSs have filed a fresh constilutional petition via CP
4653 dated July 11, 2019. In this regard, on July 15, 2019, the Honourable High Court of Sindh has issued notices to
the relevant parties and has ordered that no third party inlerest on bonus shanes issued to the Funds in liew of their
investments be created in the meantime. The matter is still pending adjudication and the Funds have included these
shares in their porifolic, as the management 1= confident that the decision of the constitutional petition will be in
favour of the CiSs.

The Finance Act, 2018, effoective from July 1, 20118, has omitted Section 236M of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
raquiring every company guoted on stock exchange issuing bonus shares to the shareholders of the company, to
withhold five percent of the bonus shares to be issued. Therefore, bonus shares issued to the Fund since July 1,
2018 ware not withheld by the investoe companios.

As at June 30, 2024, the bonus shares of the Fund withheld by certain companies at the fime of doclaration of bonus
shares amounted o Rs. 1,89 million (2023: Rs. 0.76 million).

5.1.2 Listed equity securities - preference shares

Markef vatue as &

Numiber of shares Balance 25 al June 38, 224 o

Nams of the ivestzs company Kt Purchsed | Banus{right|  Sold Nei | Totsl

iy |, : o T | Asatdune | Carrying | Markel | Unrestised _
turing e | issur during | during the . msoisof| invest-
M, 1 o o o 02MH | weies | wim | dimmation e Fendl mat
——ry

Engro Poymer and Chemicals Limited 2,000,000 - . - 2000000  M000 EN (138N 33 A00
Total as at June 30, 2024 000 26%  (1.380)
Total as at June 3, 2023 20 MM 13m0

These shares camry dividend at the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 3.50% per annum on cumulative basis. The rate
prevailing on June 30, 2024 and Decomber 31, 203 have benn considened.
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51.3 Market Treasury Bills

Face value Balance as at June 30, 2024 Market value a5 a
Purch Soid | percentage of
Tenar Issun dais Metwiydste |Asatduly| | waiured AsatJune| Camying | Markel | Unreafised | Mel Tokal
o 2mn | At gl 302004 | valeo | volos | ceminoion | sssetof | iveest
VO e H the Fund | menis
{Fuapess in T00]
Market Treasury Bills
-3 monkhs June 15, 073 Seplember 7, 2023 60,000 - 50, D00 - - - - - -
-3 manths July 13, 2023 Oclober 5, 2023 - 500000 500,000 - = - = 3 x
-dmonths  Awpesl 10, 2023 Novamebr 23, 2023 - GO000 60,000 - - - - - -
Total as at June 30, 2024 - - -
Total as at June 30, 2023 SIEIBE Hg g!

52 Net unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on Mote June 30, June 30,
re-measurement of investments classified as 2024 2023
‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” —— (Rupees in "000) ——

Markal value of investrments 611,885 555,303
Less: Carrying value of investments (453,684) (574,199)
158, 181 {18 BO6)
6 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Dividend recevable 2492 1,024
Prolil recedvable on savings accounis 1,645 2,143
Recaivable from National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (MCCPL) 1,134 1.134
Other receivablas 3T 37
Recanvablo against bonus shames willibhald 1,058 1,056
Security deposits wilh:
- Mational Clearing Company of Pakistan Limiled (NCCPL) 2 500 2 500
- Central Dopository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) 100 100
Advance L 6.1 713 516
9.677 B.510

6.1 As per clausa 47(B) of part IV of the Second Schedule o the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, paymeanls made lo
collective investmant schemoes (ClSs) am exempl from withbolding tax under section 151 and 150, Howover,
withholding tax on profil on saving accounls with banks and dividend paid to the Fund has been deducled by varous
withholding agents basad on the interpretation issued by FER vide letter C. no. 1{43) DG (WHT¥2008-vOLI-66417-
R dated 12 May 2015 which requires every wilthholding agent (o withhold income tax at applicable rates in case a
valld exemplion cedilicale under section 159(1) ssued by the concemed Commisskoner of Inland Revenue (CIR) ks
nol produced before him by the withholder. The tax withheld on dividends and profit on saving accounts with banks
amounted to Rs. 0.713 million {2023: Rs. 0.516 millon). Pending resolution of the maller, the amount of withhalding
tax doduclod on dividends roceived by he Fund and profil on savings accounls with banks has baen shown as
Advance lax under ‘Advances, deposits and other receivables’ as al June 30, 2024 as, in the opinion of the
managemenl, the amount of tax deducled al source will be refunded.

Far this purpoesa, the Mutual Funds Assocation of Pakistan (MUFAP) on behall of varous mutual funds (including the
Funds baing managed by the Managemenl Company) had filked a petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC)
challenging the above menlioned ntarpretation of the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) which was decided by the
SHC in favour of FBR. A palition was filed in the Supreme Courl ol Pakistan by lhe Funds logelhar wilh olher ClSs
(managed by the Managemenl Company and other Assel Managemenl Companes) wheraby the Supreme Couwrl
granted the pelitoners leave 1o appeal from the inlial judgment of the SHC.

Mote June 30, June 30,
T PAYABLE TO MCE INVESTMENT LIMITED 2024 2023
- MANAGEMENT COMPANY —— {Rupees in "000) ——
Managemanl remuneraion payable 71 1,722 1,655
Sndh Sales Tax payable on remuneration of the Managemant
Company T2 224 215
Allocated expensas payable 7Aa 44 50
Salling and marketing axpensas payable 74 532 -
Sales Inad payabla z2
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T4 As per reguiation 61 of the NBFC Reguiations, 2008, the Management Company = entitied to a remuneration egual
to an amount not exceeding the maximum rate of the management fee as disclosed in the Offering Document
subject o the total expense ratio Limit Keeping in view the maximum allowabie iimit, the Management Company has
charged its remuneration at the rates ranging from 2.95% to 3.35% per annum (2023: 3.30% per annum) of the
average daily net assets of the Fund during the year. The remuneration is payable to the Management Company
monthly in amears.

T2 During the year, an amount of Rs. 2.61 million (2023: Rs. 3.08 million) was charged on account of sales tax on
management fee levied through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 at the rate of 13% (2023: 13%) and an
amount of Rs. 2.60 million (2023: Rs. 3.17 million) has been paid on account of sales tax on management to the
Management Company which acts as a collecting agent.

T.3 In accordance with Regulation 60 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is entitled fo charge fees and
expenses related to registrar services, accounfing, operation and wvalualion services, related fo a Collective
Investmeant Scheme (CIS).

The Management Company, based on its own discretion, has charged such expenses at the rates ranging from
0.08% o 0.10% (2023 0.10% ) per annum of the average annual net assels of the Fund for the year ended June
30,2024

T4 The SECF has allowed the Asset Management Companies to charge selling and marketing expenses to all
categories of open-end mutual funds (except fund of funds) up to a maximum §imit approved by the Board of
Directors of the Management Company as part of annual plan.

Accordingly, the Management Company has charged seliing and marketing expenses based on iis discretion at the
rates ranging from 0.05% to 0.65% per annum (2023 nil), duly authorised by the Board of Directors, while keeping in
view the annual plan, overall retum and the total expense ratio limit of the Fund as defined under the NBFC

Reguiations.
Mote June 30, June 30,
B PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY 2024 2023
COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE — (Rupees in "D00) ————
Trustee remuneration payabie 8.1 110 1040
Sindh Sales Tax payable on trustee remuneration 8.2 14 13
124 113

8.1 The Trustee is entitied to &8 monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust
Deed and Offering Document as per the tanff specified therein, based on the average daily net assets of the Fund
during the year. The tariff struciure applicable fo the Fund in respect of trustee remuneration is as follows:

Average net asset value Tariff per annum
Up to Rs.1.000 million 0.20% per annum of net assets
Amount exceeding Rs.1,000 milion Rs.2.0 million plus 0.10% p.a. of net assets exceeding Rs.1 billion

8.2 Dwring the year, an amount of Rs. 0.16 million {2023: Rs 0.18 million) was charged on account of sales tax on
remuneration of the Trustee levied through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 at the rate of 13% (2023:
13%) and an amount of Rs. 0.16 million (2023: Rs. 0.13 million) was paid on account of sales tax on remuneration of
trustee was paid to the Trustee which acts as a collecing agent.

MNote June 30, June 30,
9 PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 2024 2023
COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN e (RUpees in "000) mm——
Fee payable 9.1 52 144
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9.1 In accordance with the NBFC Regulations, a Colleciive Investment Scheme (CIS) is required to pay non-refundabile
fee to the Securiies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Accordingly, the Fund has charged SECP fee
at the rate of 0.095% (2023: 0.02%) per annum of the daily net assets during thoe year

Further, the Fund is required to pay SECP fee within fifteen days of the close of every calendar manth. Previously,
the Fund was required to pay SECP fee within three months of tho close of accounting year.

Mot June 30, Juna 30,
2024 2023
10 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES —— (Rupees in "000) —
Provision for federal excise duty on:

- Remuneration of the Managoment Compsany 10.1 18,027 19027
- Sales load ] 16,173 16,173
Auditors' remuneration payable 760 674

Withholding tax payablc 603 -
Brokerago payable 152 233
Legal and professional changes payabio 39 40
Printing charges payable 42 40
Orhver liabilities 103 102
36.809 36,289

10.1  The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial sorvices to incude Asset
Managemeni Companies (AMCs) as a mesull of which FED at the rate of 16 percent on the remuneration of the
Management Company and sales load was applicable with effect from June 13, 2013. The Management Company
was of the view that since the remuneration was already subject to provincial sales tax, further levy of FED would
result in double taxation which did not appear to be the spinl of the law. Hence, on September 4, 2013 a
constitutional petition was filed with the Sindh High Court (SHC) by the Management Company together with various
other asset management companies challenging the levy of FED.

With effect from July 1, 2016, FED on services provided or rendered by non-banking fimancial institutions dealing in
sarvices which are subject to provincial sales tax has been withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2016,

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the SHC passed an order whereby all notices, proceedings taken or pending,
orders made, duty recovered or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respeci of the rendering or
providing of services (to the extent as chalienged in any relevant petiion) were set aside. In response to this, the
Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenve has filed a Civil Pabtion for leave to appeal in the Supreme Coort of Pakistan
which is pending adjudication.

In viow of the above, the Fund has discontinued making further provizion in respect of FED on remuneration of the
Management Company and sales load with effect from July 01, 2016. However, as a matter of abundant caution the
provision for FED made for the period from June 13, 2013 till June 30, 2016 amounting to Rs 35.20 million is being
retained in these financial siatéemenis of the Fund as the malter is pending before the Supreme Courl of Pakistan.
Had the provision for FED not been made, the Net Asset Value of the Fund as at June 30, 2024 would have bocn
higher by Re. 627 (2023: Re. 4.41) per unit

11 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There werne no confingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023.

Juna 30, June 30,
2024 2023

12 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION — (Rupees in "000) ——
Annual audit foe 525 500

Fee for half yearly review of condensed interim financial statements 262 250

Fee for other cedifications 115 50

Out of pocket expenses 26 149

928 444

Sindh Sales Tax 74 76

1,002 1,025 ;
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13 TAXATION

The Fund's income &5 axempt from income lax as per clause 99 of part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition thal nol less than 90 percent of the accounting income for the year as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, s distributed amongst the wnit holders as cash dividend.
Furthermore, as per Regulation 63 of the NBFC Regulations, the Fund is required to distribute not less than 90
percent of s accounting Income for the year derived from sources olther than capitsl gains as reduced by such
expenses as are chargeable thereon to the unit holders. Since the Management Company has distributed the
required minimum percentage of income eamed by the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2024 to the unit holders in
a manner as explained above, no provision for taxation has been made in these financial slalements during the year.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) under cladse 11A of Part IV of tho
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

Mote June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS —— (Rupees in "000) —
Balances with banks 4 B8.809 897.614
Market Treassury Bills - 57,581
B8.809 155,195

15 TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The Total Expense Ratio (TER) of the Fund as al June 30, 2024 s 4.90% (2023. 4.73%) which includes 0.58%
(2023 0.52%) representing govemnment levies on the Fund such as sales taxes, fee to the SECP. etc. The
prescribed limii for the ratio s 4.50% (2023: 4 50%) (excluding govermment levies) under the MBFC Regulations for a
collective investment scheme calegorized as "Asset Allocation” scheme.

16 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES OUTSTANDING WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / OTHER RELATED

16.1 Related parlies |/ connected persons of the Fund include the Management Company, other collective investment
schomes managed by the Management Company, MCB Bank Limited being the Holding Company of tho
Managemont Company, the Trustee, directlors, koy management personnel and other associated undertakings and
connected persons. Connected persons also include any person beneficially owing directly or indirectly 10% or more
of the units in the issue  nel assets of the Fund.

16.2 Transaclions with connecled persons essentially compriso sale and redemption of units, fee on account of managng
thez affairs of the Fund, sales load, other charges and distribution payments lo connecled persons, The transactions
with connected persons are also in the normal course of business, al contracted rates and al lerms delermined in
accordance with markel rates.

16.3 Remuneralion to the Maragemenl Company of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC Regulations, 2008 and the Trust Deed.

164 Remuneralicn to the Trustee of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Tust Deed.

16.5 Allocated expenses and solling and markoting expenses are charged to the Fund by the Management Company
subject o the maximum prescribed Total Expense Ratio.

16.6 Details of transactions and balances at year énd with refated parties / connected persons, other than those which
have been disclosed elsewhore in these financial slatements, are as follows:

Transactions during the year: For the year ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023

—— (Rupoes in "000) ——
MCEB Investmeont Managemant Limited - Managemeont Company

Remunaration (including indirect taxes) 22 680 26,9
Allocated expoenses 553 Tir
Selling and markafing expenses 1,710 -
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Transactions during the year: For the year ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023

== (Rupees in "000) ———
Cantral Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Reamunaration (including indirect @xes) 1,453 1,619
Cenlral Deposilory Service (CDS) sslllemant charges a2 57

Group | Associated Companies

MCEB Bank Limited
Profit on savings accounts with banks 2 1
Barnk charges 3 i}

D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited
Purchase of 164,500 shares (2023: 918,000 shares) 9,258 46 850
Sale of 597 500 shares (2023: 625,000 shares) 33.159 32935

Nishat Mills Limited
Purchase of 178,000 shares (2023: 210,000 shares) 11,832 15,158
Sale of 178,000 shares (2023: 240,000 shanas) 12,070 15,676

Hishat Chunian Limited
Purchase ol shares NIL (2023; 70,000 shares) = 25499

Sale of shares NIL (2023 B44 345 sharss) = 28,071

International Steels Limited

Purchase of 182 7B2 shares (2023 Nil) 9,005 3
Sale of 182,782 shares (2023: Nil) 13,806 2
Divadand income 4249 -
Lalpir Power Limited

Purchase of 60,000 shares (2023 Nil) 914 =
Sale of 60,000 shares (2023: NI} 1,664 -

Aisha Stoals Mills: Limited
Sale of NIL {2023 700,000 shares) = 5,612

16.7 Balances outstanding at year end: 2024 2023
——— (Rupees in "000) ——
MCE Investment Management Limited - Management Company

Managemaeanl remuneration payable 1,722 1,655
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remuneralion of the Management Company 224 215
Allocaled sxpenses payable 44 50
Selling and markeling expensas payabile 532 -

Sales load payablae - 2

Cantral Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Trustes remunaration payabile 110 1040
Sindh Sales Tax payable on truslee remuneration 14 13
Security deposit 100 100

MCE Bank Limited
Balances wilth banks 5.155 5264

D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited
Shares hald NIL {2023: 433,000 shares) - 22213
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16.8 Transactions during the year with connecied persons / refated parties in units of tha Fund:

June 30, 2024
As sl lzsued A= at Jume 30| | As &t July lasued As al June 30
July 01,2033 forcasn | Pedeemed b1} 01,2002 |  forcasn | RECEemed 204
Uinits [Rupees in "009)
Group ! assoclated companles
DuG Khan Cement Company Limided -
Employess’ Prosadent Fund Trust L7127 - BT - 2,2 - 3,030 -
Adamiss Life Assurance Company
Limnited - Investment Multipier Fund 3,678 277 413,678 14200m0 2.B62 BTG 207 047 48,984 150,000 342 889
Mandate undar discretionary
portfolio services® 287,748 iz 10,738 277,010 22038 - 1,120 33,178
Unitholders 10% or more 951,45 - 51 25 - 72 861 - 72,8681 -
* This reflects the posifion of related party § connected person siats as at June 30, 2024,
June 30, 2023
As at Issaed fur As ot Jume 30) | As af July | lssoed for As at June 30
suy01,202| JGonas | e | onng 0,202 | Bones | e anmy
Units (Rupess in ‘600)
Group | essociated companies
D.G Khan Cement Company Limited -
Employsss’ Prsident Fund Trust 35, 7E - - 35T 2684 - - 2702
Adsmjes Life Assursnce Compamy
Limited - Investment Mulbpher Fund A BTBITT - B JETA2TT 205 147 - - 207 047
Mandate under discretionary
portiolio services® 157 085 190,541 50,278 ZBT. 748 11,065 14000 4,458 T2 0an
Unitholders 10% or more 951 285 iz & 951,285 72,385 - - 72,861
* Thia refiects the poattion of related party | connecled person stabhs &s &t June 30, 2023
7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
June 30, 2024
At At fair value
amortised through Total
coslt profit or loss
(Rupoes in "000)
Financial assets
Balances with banks 88,809 - 88,809
Investmenis - 611,865 611,865
Deposits and other recovables 8,964 - B 954
Recoivable against sale of investmants 8221 - 8221
105,994 611,865 717,858
Financial liabilities
Payable to MCB Investmeni Management
Limited - Mamagement Company 2572 - 2522
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pabestan Limited - Trustoe 124 - 124
Payable against purchase of investmants 7,016 - T.016
Payable against redemplion of units 3 - 31
Accrued expenses and other labilities 1,056 - 1.096
10,789 - 10,789
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June 30, 2023
Al At fair value
amortised through Total
cost profit or loss
(Rupees in "000)
Financial assots
Balances wilh banks a7 614 - 97 614
Investments - 555,303 555 303
Daposits and olher recelvablos 7,994 - T.994
Recaivable againsl sale of investmanls 4,465 - 4 465
110073 555 303 665 378
Financial liabilities - -
Payable o MCB |nvastmenl Managamenl
Lirmitexd - Management Company 1,822 - 1,922
Payable lo Caniral Deposilory Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustos 3 - 113
Payable aganst purchase of invesiments 16,743 - 16,743
Payabla against redamplion of unils i - 3
Accrued expenses and othar labiilios 1,089 - 1,088
19,898 - 19,898

18 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Fund's objective in maraging sk i the creation and protecton of unil holders’ valuve. Risk 1= inharant in the
Fund's acliviles, bul I & managed through monlloring and conlrolling aclivilles which are primarily sel up lo be
parformad based an limils established by the Managomenl Company, (he constilulive documents of the Fund and
lhe regulabons and directives of the SECP. These imils reflect the business strategy and marke! environment of the
Fund as well as the leveal of the risk thal the Fund is willing lo accapl The Board of Direclors of the Managemeant
Company supervises tha overall nsk management approach within the Fund. The Fund s axposed o markel sk,
liguidity risk and credil fsk arsing from the inancial instruments il holds.

181 Market risk

Markot nsk is the sk that the fair value or the fulure cash flows of a linancial mstrument may lucluate as a resull of
changes in markel prices.

The Managemeanl Company manages the markel nsk throogh diversification of the investmenl podiolio and by
lallowing the inlemal guldelines established by lhe Invesiment Commilles.

Markel sk comprises of threo lypes of risk: currency risk, yield [ interes] ate rsk and price sk

{i} Currency risk

Currency risk s (he sk thal the fair valuve or lulure cash llows of a linancial instrument will llucluate as a esull of
changes in foreign oxchange ales. The Fund does nol have any linancial insirumenis in fomign curmencies and
hence s nol exposed (o such sk,

{ii} Yield / interost rate risk

Yield [ nberesl rale nsk s the nsk that the fair value or lulure cash lows of a inancial instrument will Mucluate as a
resull ol changes In markel yield / inleresl mles. As ol June 30, 2024, lhe Fund = exposed lo such risk on s
balznces hoid with bank. The invesimen! Commilles of the Fund raviews the portfolio of the Fund on a regular basis
Lo ensure thal the risk s managed wilthin the acceplable limits.

a) Sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments

Az al June 30, 2024, the Fund is exposed lo cash llow yield ! inleresl rale risk on savings accounls with banks and
on listd equity securities (preforence shames). In case of 100 basis points increase / docrease as on June 30, 2024,
wilh all other varables held constant, the nel assaels value of the Fund and he net income lor the year would have
bean lowsr [ higher by s, 106 millon (2023: Rz 116 millkon).

The composilion of the Fund's immesiment portiolio, KIBOR rates and m@ales announced by Lhe Financial Markels
Associalion of Pakislan are expecled o change over lime. Accardingly, he sensilivily analysis prepamed as of June
30, 2024 5 nol pecessarily indicative of the mpact on the Fund's nel assels of fulume movemeants in yviald [/ inleres)
rales.

Yiedd | nterest rale sansitivity posibon for on-balance shesl linancial nstruments 5 based on the sarber of
conlraciual repricing or malurily dale and for oll-balance sheel iInstrumenls s based on the selllem enl date.

Tha Fund's yield / inlerest ale sensilivily related lo financial assels and flinancial kabilities as al Juna 30 2024 and
June 30 2023, can be determined as follows:
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On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets
Balances with banks

Investments

Deposits and other receivables
Receivable against sale of mvestmenis

Financial liabilities

Payable to MCB Investmant Management
Limited - Manageament Company

Payable to Central Deposiony Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustoe

Payable against purchase of investments:

FPayable against redemplion of units

Accruad expanses and other liabiies

On-balance sheet gap (a)
Off-balance sheet financial instruments
Off-balance sheet gap {b)

Total interesi rate sensitivity gap {(atb)
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap

Dn-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial asseis
Balances with banks

Irvestments
Deposits and other receivables
Receiable against sale of investmenis

Financial liabilities

Payable o MCB Investment Management
Limited - Management Company

Payable o Ceniral Depository Company of
Pakistan Limiled - Trustes

Payable against purchaso of investments
Paydble against redemplion of units
Accrued expensas and olher liabiiies
On-balance sheet gap (a)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments
Off-balance sheet gap {b)

Total interesi rate sensitivity gap (at+b)
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap

(i) Price risk

June 30, 2024
Exposed to yield  interest raie sk ot exposed
Effeciive yield / More than three o yisld /
to three More than Total
interestratn (%) | P monthsandupte | o interast rain
ONE year one y risk
{Rupees in "0
19.00% - 20.50% B3.663 - - 5146 B8, 209
24.99% - 22620 - 589 245 611,865
= = = B 964 8,964
- - - B.221 8,221 |
B3.663 22,620 - 611,576 77 859
= T - 2532 2530
= E - 124 124
- - - T7.016 7016
= X - < § | b |
_ . - 1,006 1,006
- - - 10,760 10,789
B3.663 22,620 = BO0_TET 707,070
83,663 22620 -
B3,663 106 283 106 283
June 30, 2023 —
Exposed to yield | interest rale risk Mot exposed
Effective yield / Mare than three to yield /
sl rate [%) Up to three iy More than bk | rals Total
maonths. ¥ ofne year
one year risk
{Rupees in "000)
12.25% - 21.50% 32,3586 - - 5,258 o7 614
20 54% &7.581 24 000 - 473,722 555,303
- - - 7.004 T.004
= 5 - 4 4B5 4 465
148,937 24,000 - 451,430 665,376
e = = 1822 1.922
= = - 113 13
16,743 16,743
o d | a1
- = 1,089 1,089 |
- - - 19,888 19, 888
148,937 24,000 = 471,541 BAGATE
148,937 24,000 -
149,937 173,937 173,837

Price risk iz the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrumeant will Nuctluate because of changes
in markael prices (olher than those arising from yield / inleres] rale risk or curmency risk) whelther those changes are
causad by factors specific 1o the individual linancial instrument oF ils sswer, or factors affecting all similar inancial

instrumants traded in the markst.
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Equity price risk iz the risk that the fair value of eguity instruments decreases as a result of changes in the lovel of
equily indices and the value of indvidual stocks.

In case of 1% increase [ decrease in KSE-100 index on June 30, 2024, with all other varables held constant, the
total net iIncome of the Fund for the year would increase | decrease by Rs. 612 million (2023 Rs. 4 98 million) and
the nol assets of the Fund wolld increase / decrocase by the same amount as a resull of gains [/ losses on aquily
securities dassified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The analysis is based on the assumption that equity index had increased / decreased by 1% with all other variables
held constant and all the Fund's equity instruments moved according to the histoncal correlation with the index. This
represents management's best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the KSE-100 Index, having regard o the
historical volatility of the index. The composition of the Fund's investment portfolic and the comrelation thercofl o tha
KSE-100 Index, is expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2024
iz nol necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets of fulure movements in the level of the KSE-100
Ik

Crodit risk

Crodit risk i the sk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Fund by failing to
discharge its obligation as i falls due. The table below analyses the Fund's maximum exposure o credit risk:

2024 2023
Balance as per Balance as per :
statement of — statement of ——
o || e || o || e
—— Rupeesin 000———

Balanoes wilth banks B, 808 88 809 ST 614 87 614

Invesimenls 611,865 - 555,303 -
Deposits and other recevables B,564 8,564 T, B 5,422
Receivabie against sale of investmeants B 221 8,221 4,465 4,465
717,859 105,994 BES,ATE 108,501

The maximum exposure o credit sk before any credit enhancement as at June 30, 2024 i the camying amount of
the financial assets. Difference in the balance as per the statemen] of assels and liabiliies and maximum exposure ks
due to the fact that investments in eguity securities of Rs. 61187 million (2023: Ra. 55530 million) is not exposed to
credit risk

There s a possibility of defaull by participants or fallure of the financial market [ stock exchanges, the depositones,
the setlements or clearing systems, elc. Setlliement nisk on eguily securties is considered minimal becauso of
inherent controls established in the setilemenl process. The Fund's pollcy s lo enter inlo financial contracts in
accordance with intermal risk management polickes and instruments guidolines approved by the Investmoent
Commities.

18.2.1 Credit quality of imrancial assels

The Fund's significant credit risk (excuding credil nsk relating lo setilement of equity securities) arises mainly on
account of its placements in banks and profit accrued thereon. The credit rating profile of balances with banks s as

Tallows:
2024 2023
Rating category A
AAB a98.67 10.13
Ab 1.04 89.60
AA 023 015
LA 0.01 0.03
As 0.02 0.05
A= . 0.02
A - 0.02
BB+ 0.03 -
10000 104000

Since, the balances are maintained with credit-worthy counter-partios therefore, credil risk 3 mit gated.
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Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of crodit risk exists when changes in oconomic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregale credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund's fotal credit exposure. The
Fund's portfolio of financial instruments i broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with divarse credit-
worthy counterparties thercby mitigating any significant concentration of credit nsk.

Sattlernent risk

The Fund's acliviics may give rnso to sk at the ime of setilement of fransacons. Settiement risk is the risk of loss
due to the failure of counter party to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securties or other assets as contractually
agreed. Credit risk relating to unsettled transactions in securities is considered to be minimal as the Fund uses
brokers with high credit worthiness and the transactions are seftled or paid for only upon delivery using central

clearing system.
18.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settie its ebligation in
full as they fall due or can only do =0 on terms that are materally disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to daily setflement of equity secorifies and daily redemptions at the option of unit holders. The
Fund's approach o managing liguidity i= to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its abiliies when due under both normal and stressed conditions. The Fund's policy is, therefore, 1o
invest the majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed of and
are considered readily roalisablo.

As per the NBFC Regulafions, the Fund can bormow in the short<term to ensure settlement the maximum limit of
which iz fifteen percent of the net assets up to 90 days and would be secured by the asseis of the Fund.

In order to manage the Fund's overall figuidity, the Fund also has the ability to withhold daily redemption requests in
excess of ten percent of the units in ssue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests gualifying for
being processed on the next business day. Such procodure would continue until the oulstanding redemption
requests come down o a level below ten percent of the units in isspe. The Fund did not withhold any redemptions
durnng the year

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund's financial instruments. The analysis info. relevant
matunty groupings 15 based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity
dates. However, the asseis and fiabilities that are receivable / payable on demand including balances with banks
have been included in the matunty grouping of one month:

June 30, 2024
| Morethan | More than “:1""' Financial
Withis | cnemonth |thres months ane| Mo | nstroments
one year and | than five Total
and ppte | and uplo one| A with no fixed
maoth | srce monihe year maturity
YOS
Riipess in "000
Financial assets
imvestments E 5 : : - 611865 | 611,865
Deposits and other recefebles 4137 - . . . 4,827 B.964
Recoivable aogainst sale of invesimanks [ehy | 2 2 2 : : r
101,167 = = = - 616,602 '?1?.355
Financial liabilities
Payabie lo MG Investment Managemen .
Limiled - Managemant Cornpsany FEL7F] = = = = = Fl7]
Payabile o Contral Deposilony Compeany ol
Pakistan Limiled - Trustes 124 . . . . < 124
Payabile agmmsl purchasa ol imvestments 7016 2 : : : z 706
Pasyesbile against redemprlion of units 3 2 = = = . M
Accruad expenses and olbar kabilifes 336 TH0 - - - - 1,096
10,028 T80 = = = z 10,788
Met financiz! assels 81,138 F=] Bi6,592 707070
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June 30, 2023
More
More than | More than Financial
o one month | three months Ex u:f':;'n instruments Total
e and upto | and upto one isplo five with no fized
three months year gl maturity
years
Rupees in 000
Financial assets
Balances with banks a7 614 2 = z : - 97 614
Investmants - - - - - 585,303 | 555300
Deposits and oliver recaivablios 3,167 E s E . 4,827 7004
Rucehable agains] saks of imvestmants 4465 + - - = . 4 465
Fimancial liabilities
Payabila fo MCB Invesiment Managemsanl
ILirmitisdt - Managemenl Company 1.922 - - - - B 1.92
Payabks o Central Deposilony Comgerny of
Pakistan Limiad - Trustes 113 - - - - - 113

Panyabile aganst purchase of nvesiments 16,743 F = g 2 - 16,743
Payable agans! redemplion of unis i1 p = . = = k)|
Accruad exponsis and other abilbes 415 G4 = - - - 1,088

18,224 74 - - . - 19,898
Met financial assets 6,022 [GI4] = = - BE0.190  GAATE

19 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordorly transaction
between market paricipants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can anse between camying values
and the fair value estimates.

Underdying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concemn without any intention or
requirement fo curtail matedally the scale of its operations or o undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Financial assets which arc tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices provailing on the statement
of assel= and liabilitics date. The estimaled fair value of all other financial assets and fiabilities is considered not o
be significantly different from the respoctive book values.

19.1  Fair value hisrarchy
Intermational Financial Reporting Standard 13, "Fair Value Measuremant' requires the Fund fo classify assets using a
fair value hiorarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used In making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the following lovels:
Leval 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in-active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are obsersable for the assel or liability either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Lovel 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on obsorvable market data (i.e. unobsarvable inputs ).

Az at June 30 2024 and Juna 30,2023, the Fund held the following financial instruments measured at fair values:

June 30, 2024 -
Level1 || Level2 || Lewel3 || Total
{Rupees in "000)

Financial asseots "at fair value through

profit or loss"
Listed equity securities - ordinary shares 580 245 - - 589 245
Listed equity securities - preference shares 22 620 - - 22 620

Market Treasury Bills

511,865 : = 511,865
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June 30, 2023
tevel1 || Leveliz || Lovei3 || Total
{Rupees in "000)
Financial asseots "at fair value through
profit or loss’

Listed equity securities - ordinary shares 473,722 . B 473,722
Listed oquily securities - preference shares 24 000 - - 24 000
Market Treasury Bills - 57,581 B 57,581

497,722 57,581 - 555,303

20 UNIT HOLDERS® FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by redeemable units. These units ane entifed o dividends and o payment of
their proportionate share of the Fund's Net Asset Value per unit on the redemption date. The relevant movements
are shown on the "Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund'.

The Fund has no restriction on the subscription and redemption of units. As required under the NBFC Regulafions,
every open end scheme shall maintain fund size {i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs. 100 million at all times during the
life of the scheme. The Fund has historically maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size at
all times.

Tha Fund's objectives when managing unit holders” funds ane to safeguard its abiity to continue as a goeing concem
so that it can confinue to provide returns to the unit holders and to maintain a strong base of asscls o mest

unexpocied losses or opportunities.

In accordance with the risk management policies as siated in note 18, the Fund endeavours to invast the
subscripfions received in approprnate investment avenues while maintaining sufficient iquidity to meet redemplions,
such liquidity baing augmented by disposal of investments or short-term bormowings, where necossary,

21 PATTERN OF UNITHOLDING

Details of pattern of unitholding As al June 30, 2024
Numbar of Number of Investmeoent Percentage
unit holders units held amount imvestmant
(Rupees in '000) Yo
Individuals ‘880 2 027 498 242 835 36.14%
Associated company 1 2 862,876 342 889 51.03%
Provident and pensions funds 4 686,019 82,165 12.23%
Others 5 33,71 4,039 0.60%
990 5,610,114 671,928 100.00%
As at June 30, 2023
Number of Numbaer of Investmant Percentage
unit holders uniis hald amount investment
(Rupeaes in "000) e
Individuals o931 2326921 178,225 29.18%
Provident and pensions funds a8 1,620,051 129,445 21.20%
Associated companies 2 3,913,548 299,748 49.09%
Oithers 73 42 192 3,232 0.53%
1,014 7972712 610.650 100%
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2 TOP TEN BROKERS |/ DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID

Detalls of commission paid by the Fund lo top len brokers by percentage during the year are as follows:

2024
(Percentage)
1 Foundation Securities Limited 9.65%
2 Alfa Adhi Securities (Private) Limited B.42%
3 Alfalah CLSA Securities (Private) Limited T 83%
4 Al Habib Capital Markets (Private) Limiled T.69%
5 EFG Hemes Pakistan Limited T67%
& BMA Capital Managemen! Limited 7.50%
7 Topline Securities Limited 6.47%
B KTrade Securities Limited (Tormery: Khadim Ali Shah Bukhari Securities Limited) 6.15%
3 Insight Securitics Limited 5.84%
10 JS Global Capital Limited 4 B4%
2023
(Percentage)
1 Ismall lgbal Securities (Private) Limited 10.08%
2 Khadim Ali Shah Bukhari Securities Limited B.52%
3 DJUM Securities (Private) Limited B8.03%
4 Foundation Securities Limited 6.04%
5 Topline Securities Limited 5.37T%
& Insight Securities Limited 4.89%
7 Optimus Capilal Managemant {(Private) Limited 4.57%
& LEFG Hermes Pakistan Limited 4. 48%
9 J5 Global Capital Limited 421%
10 AL Habib Capital Markets (Private) Limited 3.90%

23 ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The 189th, 190th, 191th, 192nd, 193rd, 194th, 195th & 196th mesting of the Board of Directors were held on July 21,
2023, July 26, 2023, September 28, 2023, October 12, 2023, October 18, 2023, February 02, 2024, Apnl 19, 2024
and April 22, 2024 respectively. Information in respect of allendance by the directors and other persons in the
meetings is given below:

Numbor Mumber of i
Mame of directors Designation moefings MH Leave Mootings not attended
held regquined graniod|

Mr. Haroon Rashid Chairman 8 B 8 -
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Director & 8 & . .
Syed Savail Meckal Hussain Director & i 7 1 185th
Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Director B B B 2 192nd, 155th
Mr, Muhammad Saqib Saleem ' Ex - Chief Executive Officer 8 5 5 - :
Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Director 8 8 5 3 150ih, 1592nd, 195th
Mr. Manzar Mushiag Director 8 8 8 - .
Mr. Shoaib Mumiaz Director B B 5 3 192nd, 193th, 125th
Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shﬂhz Chiof Executive Officer 8 3 3 = -

! Mr. Muhammad Sagib Sakeem resigned from the Board with effect from October 21, 2023.
#Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah has boon appointed on the Board with effect from November 01, 2023,
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND FUND MANAGER

Details of members of Investment Committes of the Fund are as follows:

S.No. Name Designation Qualification Efl:“m"““
1 Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah* Chief Executive Officer MBA, 32
2 Mr. Muhammad Asim Chief Investment Officer MBA, CFA 21
3 Mr. Awais Abdul Sattar Portfolio Manager Equities MBA, CFA 13
4  Mr. Saad Ahmed Head of Fixed Income MBA 18
5  Syed Abid Ali Head of Equities MBA, 16
6  Mr. Usama Igbal Fund Manager Graduate 20

*Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah appointad on the Board with effect from November 01, 2023.

Mr. Syed Abid Ali is the Manager of the Fund as al year end. Other funds being managed by him are as follows:

MCB KPK Govi Employees Pension Fund- Money Market Sub Fund;
- MCB Pakistan Dividend Yield Flan;
- Pakistan Capital Market Fund;
- Pakistan Pension Fund;
- Alhamra |siamic Assel Allocation Fund;
- Alhamra lslamic Stock Fund;
- Alhamra Opportunity Fund - Dividend Strategy Plan;
Alhamra Isiamic Pension Fund; and
MCHB Alhamra KPK Govt Employees Pension Fund- Money Market Sub Fund.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been re-classified, re-amanged or additionally mcorporaled in these financial statements,
wherever necessary to facililate comparison and lo conform with changes in presentation in the current year. No
significant rearrangements or reclassifications were made in these financial statements.

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off (o the nearest thousand rupees unless olherwise specified.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authonsed for issue on September 25, 2024 by the Board of Directors of
the Management Company.

For MCB Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

- .-lr
ol AP
T F - i &
P )ﬂu.sebmmaﬁi'-'ﬁ—

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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PATTERN OF UNITS HOLDING BY SIZE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

No. of Unit Holders Unit holdings Total units held
264 A, 001-10,000 5,748

358 B. 10,001 - 100,000 129,442

113 C. 100,001 - 1000,000 306,848

55 D. 1000,001 & Above 5,168,075

590 5,610,114
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PERFORMANCE TABLE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

olal Nel Assets Value — Rs. in millicn 671028 610.6500 B37 8605 9120630 | 1,299.4R04
[Net Assals value per unit — Rupoes 19,7708 7.6 76.1026 HB.6AT7 BAGTOT
[Ciosing Cfter Price 123.831 7. 1890) 786825 BOBAE7Y  71.000%9
[Closing Repurchase Price 1197708 73,050 745227 B3 7129 BEETGT
[Fighest offer price per unil 1453054 26547 918276 525674  Bo.Z307
Lowest olfer price per unil 791922 70,7029 760627 716108 5O.0020
Highest Redomplion price per unit 140.5411 75,0440 BEBIGT 0 IR
Lpwest Redemetion price per unil 7B 5050 58,3840 74 A5BG B9.2R2Y 577064
Disiribubion per umit — R=. * 20 i 0.6000 2 :
Average Annual Return - %
Ona year B2 70 0.64] 1150 26,16 _3.58
Two year 11.72 548 7.30) i -6.69
Three year 23.98 504 367 ] 5.1
Nel Income | (loss) for the pericd — R, in million 377.058 27230 1251 3247000 (40,760
{Disiribuiion made during the year — Rs, in milion” 169.0160 = 6.3160 - -
[Accumulated Capilal Growih — Rs. i million 2080404 (27237 (1314634 32470000 (40.7604)

* Date of Distribuilan

Dissclai

The pasl performance is not necessarily indicative of fultre performance and unil prices and investments and relums may go down, as well as up.
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PROXY ISSUED BY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The Board of Directors of MCB Investment Management Limited (the Management Company of
MCB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund -~ MCB-PAAF) has an overall responsibility for the

implementation ol Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures which is available on the Management
Company’s website (www.mcbfunds.com).

During the linancial year ended June 30, 2024, the Management Company on behall of MCB-
PAAF participated in twelve (12) sharcholders' meetings. The Management Company did not
participate in shareholders’ meetings in the cases which did not meet the criteria reported in
Paragraph No. 8 and 9 of the Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures. Summary of actual proxies
voted during the financial year are as follows:

Resolutions | For | Against | Abstain | Reason for Abstaining

Number 95 83 12 0 -
(%hages) 100 87 13 0 -

Detailed information regarding actual proxies voted by the Management Company in respect ol
MCB-PAAF is available without any charges, upon request, to all Unit Holders.
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MCB INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Head Office: 2nd Floor, Adamise Houwse, ||, Chundrigar Road, Karachi
UAN: (+92-21) 111 468 378 (111 INVEST)
URL: www.mcbfunds.com, Email: info@mcbfunds.com



